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STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

 

 

IN RE: BLOCK ISLAND UTILITY DISTRICT               

2021 DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT PLAN                    DOCKET NO. 5013  

 

DIVISION’S FIRST SET OF DATA REQUESTS  

ISSUED APRIL 8, 2021 

(PLEASE RESPOND BY April 19, 2021) 
  

Div. 1-1  

Please provide a detailed breakdown of all the Budget categories set forth on Table 2.1.   

Div. 1-2   

For Tables 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, 3.5, and 3.6, please add a column with the estimated per unit price of each 

item. – confidential treatment 

Div. 1-3   

Please provide a copy of the contract for the “Efficiency Consultant Services  

Response: See request to treat the responses to Questions 1-1-1-3 as “Highly Confidential.” 

Prepared by Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-4  

Will the Efficiency Consultant be working on-island or off?  

Response: The Efficiency Consultant is conducting work off-island through virtual meetings. 

However, the consultant will conduct Quality Control/Quality Assurance activities on the island, 

once permitted after COVID-19 restrictions, as appropriate.  

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-5   

If already designed, please provide a copy of any proposed advertisements or outreach materials, 

as identified in Table 2.1. 

Response: We have published advertisements in the Block Island Times, on the community 

bulletin board and bill stuffers. See ATTACHMENTS DIV 1-5 (JMW 1, 1-1, 2, and 3).   

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright 
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Div. 1-6   

What is the identity of the vendor that will be providing energy assessments?  

Response: After developing an RFP for efficiency services and conducting a competitive bid the 

Block Island Utility District entered into an agreement with Energy New England (ENE) to serve 

as the vendor for energy assessments. This contract is included in our response to DIV 1-3 as 

ATTACHMENT DIV 1-3 (JMW2). 

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright 

 

Div. 1-7   

Will these be conducted virtually, or in person? 

Response: Since public program launch in November of 2020, customers have had the option to 

receive either an in-person or a virtual energy assessment. To date, most customers have chosen 

in-person assessments, though ENE has conducted one virtual assessment.  

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-8   

If virtually, are there any plans to follow up in person once COVID 19 restrictions are lifted? 

Response: Follow up on virtual audits can be conducted as part of the QA/QC work that BIUD is 

undertaking as part of its program inspection and evaluation. The one virtual audit conducted in 

program year 2020 will be part of the QA/QC work to check-in with the customer and verify the 

installation of direct install measures. 

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-9   

Are the inspection and verification vendors the same as the ones conducting the energy 

assessments? 

Response: As part of the RFPs developed for efficiency services and consulting services, vendors 

were able to describe their capability for providing inspection and verification services. The 

selected efficiency vendor, ENE, and the selected efficiency consulting vendor, Johnson 

Consulting, will be splitting the inspection and verification work for this DSM program. 

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 
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Div. 1-10   

Please identify the inspection and verification vendors and explain how they were, or will be, 

chosen for the work. 

Response: The inspection and verification work will be conducted jointly by ENE, the lead 

efficiency vendor, and by Johnson Consulting, the efficiency consulting vendor. They were chosen 

to provide these services based on their responses to the RFP solicitations that BIUD put out in the 

summer of 2020, subsequent interviews, and cost proposals for performing those services. Based 

on an evaluation of all the respondents these firms were best positioned to provide the required 

QA/QC and inspection services. In dividing the work between the two firms, care was taken to 

ensure a firm would not be responsible for verifying or inspecting its own work.  

ENE will provide inspection and verification services for any weatherization or HVAC work 

rebated through the DSM program.  

Johnson Consulting, through its subcontractor Michaels Energy, will provide QA/QC inspections 

for a sample of the direct install measures for residential customers as well as inspections and 

verification of direct install and any lighting work performed in businesses. They are also, if 

necessary, able to provide inspection services for weatherization and HVAC systems should there 

be a conflict and ENE is unable to provide those services. 

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-11  

What does the District mean when it references “engaging more local service providers” on page 

4 of its submission?  Does the District mean providers located on Block Island, or from greater 

Rhode Island? 

Response: The District is referring to service providers located on Block Island, to the extent there 

are any available, for the required services. 

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-12   

On page 4, the District states its “efficiency consultant assists the District in administering the 

DSM programs, managing the tracking and reporting of data, and making suggestions for future 

program development.  The consultant also assists the District in developing a cost-effectiveness 

framework and evaluating program performance, consistent with Docket #4600 principles and 

directives.”  

Please provide a copy of the Docket #4600 cost effectiveness framework prepared for this filing.  
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Response: Because the program has less than six months of activity, BIUD has not yet finalized 

the cost effectiveness framework or calculated the cost effectiveness of the program. BIUD plans 

to calculate the cost-effectiveness of the program by sector using the RI Test as defined by PUC 

Docket 4600. Many inputs to the cost-effectiveness analysis will come from program tracking 

data, such as measure counts and energy and demand savings, while others will come from BIUD, 

such as utility administration costs and discount rates. Other values, such as the effective useful 

life and incremental cost of measures, will be drawn from the Rhode Island Technical Reference 

Manual, assumptions from National Grid, or other sources. Table 1  summarizes  costs and benefits 

used in the RI Test. BIUD will use these inputs whenever they are available or measurable given 

the program’s resources. 

Table 1: Summary of Costs and Benefits for BIUD’s Cost-Effectiveness Analysis 

Perspective Costs Benefits 
Utility System • Utility Administration Costs 

• Utility Measure Cost 

 

• Reduced Energy Costs 

• Reduced Generation Capacity Costs 

• Reduced Transmission Costs 

• Reduced Distribution Costs 

• Wholesale Market Price 

Suppression Effect 

• Reduced REC Cost 

• Reduced GHG Compliance Cost 

• Reduced Environmental 

Compliance Cost 

• Reduced Risk (Net) 

• Utility Non-Energy Benefits 

• Innovation and Market 

Transformation 

Customer • Participant Measure Cost 

 

• Participant Water and Other Fuels 

Impact (Net) 

• Participant Non-Energy Impacts 

(Net) 

• Low Income Participant Benefits 

 

Societal • Societal Costs (Included in Net 

Social Benefits) 

• Reduced GHG Emissions (Net) 

• Reduced Environmental Impacts 

(Net) 

• Energy Security Benefits (Net) 

 

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-13   

On page 7 of the District’s submission, it explains possible uses for the “rollover” funds, including: 

increasing the incentive level to complete weatherization projects; increasing rebate or incentive 
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levels to encourage program participation, or provide contractor bonuses to encourage them to 

install the rebated measures for BIUD customers.  

a. To what level is the BIUD considering increasing incentive levels for weatherization? 

b. To what level is the BIUD considering increasing rebate or incentive levels to encourage 

program participation? 

c. What amount is the BIUD considering for contractor bonuses?  What evidence is there 

that contractors need a bonus to perform this work?  

d. Has the BIUD considered reaching out to contractors in greater Rhode Island as an 

alternative to contractor bonuses? 

Response: The District is not considering any of these activities at this point in the program. It is 

simply too early in the first program year to consider additional strategies. Continued engagement 

with the market will determine which, if any, of the above strategies are appropriate to pursue. 

Any potential strategies will be based on identifying the biggest need and the most effective ways 

to leverage program dollars to increase measure installations.    

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-14  

When the energy assessor provides the home energy action plan, are there any time limits set forth 

for the customer’s participation?  

Response: There are no set time limits given for customer participation once provided with the 

home energy action plan.  

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-15   

Does anyone follow-up with each customer who has had an energy assessment?  If so, by what 

method and how many times before BIUD determines that it should no longer attempt engagement 

with the customer?  

Response: ENE sends a follow up survey to each customer after the initial assessment. BIUD will 

also be following up with customers, either by phone or in person, who have yet to act on 

opportunities presented in the home energy action plan to stay engaged with them and provide 

support to drive action. There is not a set timeline for follow up, but it is expected to be at least 

once per year. 

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

Div. 1-16   

Is there an overall dollar limit for customer participation incentives?  
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Response: There are incentive caps for certain programs in the DSM plan, but there is no overall 

dollar limit for customer participation incentives outside of those caps.  

For example, in the approved 2020 plan residential customers are limited to a maximum rebate of 

$750 in the HVAC program but they are not limited from, and in fact are encouraged to, take 

advantage of weatherization rebates in addition.  

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-17   

Will BIUD be offering heat pump rebates for those customers that heat with delivered fuels?  

Response: Yes, BIUD is offering heat pump rebates to all customers, regardless of fuel type. 

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-18  

For the programmable thermostat $25.00 rebate: Will BIUD be purchasing these in bulk and then 

re-selling to BIUD customers?   

Response: No. Customers interested in taking advantage of the up to $25.00 rebate on 

programmable thermostats can simply purchase their own device and provide proof of purchase 

alongside the appropriate rebate form to the District to access these rebate dollars.  

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div.1-19  

Will the energy assessor’s work be scheduled as assessment requests come in or will assessments 

need to fit within a pre-scribed work schedule?  For instance- will the energy assessments be 

available, on demand, 7 days per week, or will they be more limited? 

Response: The energy assessor’s work is not on-demand and scheduling (for in-person service) 

has been structured on balancing demand and responsive service with minimizing travel costs to 

the island for the assessor. The assessor can travel to the island, complete 3 energy assessments, 

and return to the mainland in a single day and service availability has been based on ensuring full 

trips to the island. As demand increases, additional service days have, and will continue to be, 

added to satisfy customer demand in a timely fashion. Assessment service has had a 2-4 week 

turnaround for scheduling to date. Virtual audits provide more flexibility given that physical 

presence is not required, and the assessor works directly with the customer to schedule a  
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convenient time for each party to conduct a virtual audit, which may be accommodated sooner 

than an in-person audit. 

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-20   

On page 12, BIUD estimates that six business assessments will be conducted in the initial program 

year.  Upon what information is this estimate based?  

Response: This estimate was based on participation levels from the Block Island Saves pilot run 

by OER as well as from expectations around interest in the program provided by BIUD’s president.  

Prepared by: Jeffery M. Wright and Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-21  

Do the residential and business assessments differ in cost for the BIUD?  What are those costs per 

customer incurred by the DSM program?  

Response: The District requests to keep this information highly confidential.   

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-22   

When the energy assessor provides the business energy action plan, are there any time limits set 

forth for the customer’s participation?  What follow-up is planned?  

Response: There are no set time limits given for customer participation once provided with the 

business energy action plan. BIUD will be following up, either by phone or in person, with 

customers who have yet to act on opportunities presented in the energy action plan to stay engaged 

with them and provide support, if needed, to drive action. There is not a set timeline for follow up, 

but it is expected to be at least once per year. 

Prepared by: Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-23  

What types of educational outreach is planned for the Block Island School, if any?  What type of 

educational outreach has been developed for customers, both residential and commercial?  Please 

provide copies of any documents.  
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Response: BIUD has not coordinated any educational outreach for the Block Island School yet.  

Prepared by; Jeffery M. Wright 

 

Div. 1-24   

What type, if any, of promotional materials, such as signs, stickers, or promotional articles have 

been created for those customers who have participated in the BIUD’s DSM programs?  

Response: BIUD is not conducting any of these activities for this program yet. 

Prepared by; Jeffery M. Wright 

 

Div. 1-25   

In the Block Island Saves Final Report, dated April 2018, OER reported that the RISE assessment 

included blower-door tests.  Are these tests to be included in the proposed energy assessments 

under this program?  

Response: Blower door tests are not a standard part of the efficiency program as currently offered. 

In reviewing responses to the vendor proposals, the selected vendor offered thermal imaging as a 

part of their standard efficiency assessment service at a more competitive price than including 

blower door testing, and the District decided to utilize that option instead. The efficiency vendor 

can provide blower door testing, if necessary and at the District’s request, for an additional fee. 

Prepared by; Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-26   

In the Block Island Saves Final Report, dated April 2018, OER reported that after installation of 

energy conservation measures, inspectors reached out to participants, requesting participation in a 

survey of their overall experience of the program.  Does BIUD plan to conduct any satisfaction 

survey?  If so, has this been developed?  If so, please provide a copy of the proposed survey.  

Response: Customers participating in the DSM program receive a short online survey about their 

experience from the efficiency vendor, ENE. See ATTACHMENT DIV 1-26. 

Prepared by; Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-27   

In the Block Island Saves Final Report, dated April 2018, OER reported on page 9 that the home 

energy assessment included heat system safety testing. Is this included in BIUD’s current 

proposal?  If not, why not?  
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Response: Heat system safety testing is a part of the energy assessment. 

Prepared by; Katherine Johnson 

 

Div. 1-28   

In the Block Island Saves Final Report, dated April 2018, OER reported on page 9 that the 

weatherization program included improved insulation around hot water pipes. Is this included in 

BIUD’s current proposal?  If not, why not?  

Response: Insulating around pipes is a part of the current efficiency program. If the efficiency 

assessment identifies opportunities for pipe insulation, that will be included in the energy action 

plan as part of the overall weatherization opportunity presented to the customer. 

Prepared by; Katherine Johnson 

 

  



Call us at 888-772-4242, email  
us at solutions@ene.org, or visit  
ee.ene.org/energy-assessment. CONSERVE

Call 888-772-4242  
to get started today. 

FALL INTO SAVINGS 
with a free Home Energy Assessment

ATTACHMENT DIV 1-5 (JMW1)



ATTACHMENT DIV 1-5 (JMW1-1)



ATTACHMENT DIV 1-5 (JMW1-1)



ATTACHMENT DIV1-5 (JMW2)



ATTACHMENT DIV1-5 (JMW3) 



Home Energy Assessment Satisfaction Survey

Remote Home Energy Assessment Follow Up

1. Did the Home Energy Advisor spend adequate time with you?

Yes

No

2. Did the Home Energy Advisor address all of your concerns?

Yes

No

3. Were you able to navigate using the video feature on your phone successfully?

Yes

No

4. Overall, how usefull was the Home Energy Scorecard in improving your understanding of your homes 

energy use?

Extremely useful

Very useful

Somewhat useful

Not so useful

Not at all useful

Not Applicable

5. Do you plan on moving forward with any of the recommendations in the report?

Yes

No

6. Is there anything you would like us to know?

7. Overall, how would you rate this service?

Š Š Š Š Š
1

ATTACHMENT DIV 1-26
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